
Town Meeting Minutes 

 

March 2nd 1998 
 

Article one:  To act upon the reports of the Town Officers.  

 
Article 1 was moved by Jean Todd and 

seconded by Richard Collitt.  

 
There was no discussion.  

 

Richard Kimler called the question and was 

seconded by Gracile Lord. The vote to end 

debate was in the affirmative, and the Ar-
ticle was passed on a voice vote.  

 

 

Article two:    Will the Town vote the sum of $193,893.29 to pay General Fund and Road ex-
penses for the ensuing year, and pay outstanding orders or obligations of the Town, with interest, 

the tax rate on the 1998 Grand List to be determined by the Selectman, divided as follows: 

 
Roads, including winter work:   $113,825.00 

General Fund Costs     $80,068.29 

 
 

Article two was moved by Carol Ford and 

seconded by Joyce Dicianna.  

 
William Ford began the discussion by noting 

a few items in the budget: 

 
He noted that Middlebury College has paid 

off the fire truck note. The agreement to 

have Middlebury College pay for the fire 

truck pre dated the more recent comprehen-
sive agreement with the College.  

 

He said the budget includes costs for an ad-
ditional telephone line in the Town office, 

which is for a direct modem hook up to the 

State of Vermont Department of Taxes un-
der the provisions of Act 60. He said that the 

decision had been made to purchase a 

second computer that would be dedicated to 

Act 60 and Listers’ use. The State of Ver-
mont will have direct access to the informa-

tion in the computer, and it seemed wise to 

not allow anyone access to data other than 
the Grand List data that the state must have 

access to. He pointed out that the State 

would be compensating the Town for the 
purchase of the computer.  

 

Mr. Ford said that in 1997 the underground 

fuel tank for the Community House had 

been replaced. Although the tank was not 

leaking, there was some concern that it 

might leak eventually. The cost of cleanup 
from a fuel leak would be substantial, so the 

Board decided to remove the tank and re-

place it with a tank in the cellar of the build-
ing. In 1998 the same will be done for the 

underground fuel tank in and the current 

Town Office.  

 
Mr. Ford noted that the Community House 

will be painted this year, since the building 

has not been painted for at least seven years, 
and needs painting badly. The Town will 

solicit bids from painters in the area.  

 
There followed questions from the meeting: 

 

Richard Kimler asked about the status of the 

old Town Clerk’s office. Mr. Ford said that 
Bell Atlantic has a ten-year lease on the 

building, of which six years remain. He said 

that they had intended to move some 
switches and circuits from an outside 

switching center into the building but they 

have yet to do this. However, they are pay-
ing the rent on a regular basis.  

Bonnie Degray asked why the Cook Ceme-

tery is considered the only cemetery being 

used. Tim Hanson, Town Clerk, said it is the 



only cemetery with room for new burials. 

He noted that the Hanson family has agreed 
in principle to donate additional land to the 

Cook cemetery so that it can be expanded. 

There will be no cost to the Town for this 

additional land. The Cemetery Association 
has money in the budgets to pay for the cost 

of clearing the land. Mr. Baroz asked how 

much land would be donated. Mr. Hanson 
said that the area would be one quarter to 

one-half of an acre.  

Mr. Ford said that the Town would put up 
road-name signs over the course of the 

summer so that the Town can comply with 

the E 911 program. He said the signs will be 
like the signs on Robbins Crossroad, and 

they will be installed with one-way bolts 

that cannot be removed without a special 

tool, which may reduce vandalism and theft.  
 

After this discussion, Kim Kimler called 

question, seconded by Mr. Armentrout. The 
vote to end debate was in the affirmative, 

and the Article 2 passed on a voice vote.  

 

 

Article 3:   Will the Town vote the expenditure of $8.000.00 of State bridge repair 
funds to repair the rails, approaches and reinforce the abutments of Billing Bridge, the State funds 

to be combined with town road funds of $1,00.00 for a total project cost of $9,000?  

 
 

Moved by Barry King, seconded by Bonnie 

Degray.  
 

Mr. Ford explained that Billings Bridge is 

the bridge near the Ruane/Chesman house. 

He said that the current bridge rail is crum-
bling, and that the abutment had been un-

dermined by a water scour. He said that the 

projects like these are generally included as 
warned items because if they are added to 

the Road Budget it distorts the long-term 

picture of the cost of roadwork. He said that 

the State has already approved $8,000 for 
this work and the Town’s matching portion 

is $1.000.00.  

 
Ronald Wimett said that he would fix the 

abutment by putting large, faceted stone 

rock in the river to deflect to water away 
from the abutment. This is work the State 

has told us must be done to preserve the 

bridge. The rails will have the old spalling 

concrete removed, then filled with epoxy, 
sealed and rubbed so the they look as they 

used to do when they were new. Another 

option was to cut the rails off and replace 

them with wooden beams, but the patching 
system seemed to be the most cost-effective 

and esthetically pleasing option. The Town 

will install new approach guardrails to pro-

tect the approach to the bridge.   
 

After this discussion, Kim Kimler called the 

question, seconded by Eric Erickson. The 
meeting voted not to end the discussion, 

since it was apparent that more people 

wanted to ask questions.  

 
Joyce Dicianna asked if the word “resurfac-

ing” in the Warning and Town Report meant 

that new portions of dirt roads would be 
paved. Mr. Ford said that this only meant 

that existing pavement would be resur-

faced—no new paving was planned.  
 

At this point to Mary Clark called the ques-

tion and was seconded by Mr. Seligman. 

The vote to end debate was in the affirma-
tive, and the voice vote on the article was in 

the affirmative.  

 



 

Article 4  :Will the Town vote an expenditure not to exceed $20,000.00 from the 
Major Project Funds to stabilize a portion of the embankment of the Lincoln Road near the area 

of the Lucky Seven watering trough?  

 

Moved by Joyce Dicianna, seconded by Mr. 
Seligman.  

 

Mary Clark asked where the problem was 
located. Mr. Wimett said this portion of the 

Lincoln Road is protected by a log (hem-

lock) retaining wall. The logs are rotting, 
and the concern is that the logs will give 

way, allowing mud and stones to slide into 

the road. Also, there is not enough room to 

ditch, since ditching to close to the existing 
wall will disturb the remaining logs and 

cause further collapse. The Town has con-

sulted with an engineer who recommended 
the use of gabions, which are wire cages 

placed empty and then filled with stone. The 

gabions can be stacked end to end or on top 
of each other to create a retaining wall. The 

engineer assured the Town that these cages 

would last at least 50 years. This may not be 

the most esthetic of all of the options, but it 
certainly is one of the cheapest. 

 

Mr. Collitt asked why hemlock logs were 
not used to replace the old hemlock logs. 

Mr. Wimett said that the reason for going 

with the gabions is that they do not require 

the use of “deadmen”. Deadmen require 
digging deeply into the bank to place of 

timbers perpendicular to the ones running 

along the edge of the road, which serves to 
hold the ones that ran along the edge of the 

road. The gabions can be placed right where 

they are needed and their weight alone will 
hold them in place: they do not need to be 

keyed to the bank.  

 

Mr. Wimett said another option was to drive 
steel posts into the ground and place logs 

behind them. He said the problem with this 

system is that it might be very difficult to 
drive the posts because of the large number 

of boulders in that area, since this area is old 

river bed. He went on to describe the ga-
bions as being 3’ by 4’ boxes made of chain-

link fence which will be filled with local 
stone about the size of cobblestones.  

 

Eric Warren asked if the wire in the boxes 
would be exposed. Mr. Ford said that the 

wire baskets will be exposed, but that vege-

tation would quickly grow in front of them. 
Mr. Clark asked if there was another materi-

al that will last longer than 50 years. Mr. 

Wimett said he did not know of any other 

material that would work, or a t least any 
system that would work without disturbing 

the soil too much.  

 
Cathy Braun asked how much of the em-

bankment could be done with this money. 

Mr. Wimett said that there is about 500 ft. in 
the entire project and he estimates that this 

money will to about 1/2 to 1/3.  

 

Mr. Ford explained that the funds for this 
work would come from the Major Project 

Fund, so there would not be a direct impact 

on taxes for this year. Since there is more 
than $50,000 in the fund, there will be sig-

nificant money left in the fund after this 

work is done. 

 
Mr. Geissler said that he has seen stone 

walls like this in New Jersey—they look like 

natural stone walls. 
 

Michael Hussey said that vegetation could 

be planted to speed up the covering of the 
stone. Mr. Ford said that that might be a 

good idea. 

 

Mr. Collitt asked if there was any State 
money for this project. Mr. Ford said that we 

had gotten our share with the bridge grant 

funds discussed in the previous article. 
 

Mike Beardsley pointed out that if the re-

taining wall is not taken care of, and we 
have the right kind of flood, the bank would 

collapse, and we would have much greater 



expense to fix the damage. Mr. Wimett said 

that the bank is not in immediate danger of 
collapse, but it will come down soon if not 

dealt with. 

 

Michael Seligman asked if, in the opinion of 
the Board, this was the best option for this 

site. Mr. Wimett said that he thought it was. 

At this point the question was called by Kim 

Kimler, and seconded. The vote to end dis-
cussion was in the affirmative, and the vote 

on the article was in the affirmative on a 

voice vote.  

 
 

Article 5: Will the Town have current property and personal taxes collected by the treasur-

er, taxes due to be paid November 9, 1998? 
 

 

Mr. Kater called the question, seconded by 

Carol Ford.  
 

Mr. Kater asked what personal taxes were. 

The treasurer, Tim Hanson, said the Listers 
have a few items in the Grand List as per-

sonal property. These include the gas pumps 

at the store and some equipment at the Inn. 

However, most taxes are based on real prop-

erty, that is houses, camps and land, rather 
than personal taxes. 

 

After this discussion Kim Kimler called the 
question, seconded by Diane Dunsmore. The 

vote to end debate was in the affirmative and 

the article passed by the voice vote. 
 

 

Article 6:  Will the Town vote the sum of $13,500 to Ripton Fire Department to help pay 

Fire Department and First Response expenses for the year?  
 

 

Question was moved by Jean Todd and 
seconded by Eric Erickson  

 

Tim Hanson, Fire Chief, reported that the 

main activity planned for 1998 is to work on 
the pumper. He said that the pump is work-

ing okay but is beginning to show some 

wear. Since parts and labor are very expen-
sive, he anticipates a cost of about $5,000 to 

refurbish the pump. 

 
The second activity for 1998 is the begin-

ning of the E911. The Fire Department and 

the Town are working together to make sure 

this process is implemented on time. This 
process involves naming and signing all 

roads, and making sure that everybody has a 

locatable address.  
 

Mr. Hanson says that the Fire Department is 

in the early phases of trying to lower the 

Fire Department’s rating from a nine to an 
eight. If the Fire Department can achieve 

this, it will lower property owners’ insur-

ance costs. To achieve this goal, however, 

the Fire Department needs to arrive at the 
scene of any fire with at least 4,000 gallons 

of water--we now get there with about 

2,600, so we have a ways to go.  
 

Mr. Hanson ended the discussion with a re-

quest for anyone to volunteer who has an 
interest in either the Fire Department or First 

Response.   

 

There was no further discussion. Kim Kim-
ler called the question and was seconded by 

Eric Erickson. The vote to end discussion 

was in the affirmative, and the article was 
voted in the affirmative on a voice vote. 

 

 



Article 7:  Any other business proper to come before this meeting.  

 
 

Warren King said that the Town now has a 

new recycling trailer. The trailer was paid 

for in part by a grant from the Solid-Waste 
District. The recycling system is now a 

slightly different. He will have a walk 

through of the new system on Friday for 13
th
 

at 5:30 p.m.  

 

At this point Joyce Dicianna moved that the 

meeting be adjourned and was seconded by 
Diane Dunsmore. The meeting was ad-

journed at 9:49 p.m.  

 

 
 

 Timothy Hanson, Town Clerk 

 


